
Dundee Budget Committee
Meeting Minutes

April 29, 2021

David Russ called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.

Committee Members Present: David Russ, Storr Nelson, Ted Crawford, David Ford, Tim
Weaver, Jeannette Adlong, Dennis Phelan, Marcus Harris, Dawn Nelson, and Jeanne

Callahan (7:25 p.m.). City Staff: Rob Daykin, City Administrator; Chuck Simpson, Public
Works Supervisor; Brent VanKeulen, Interim Fire Chief; Jeff Myers, Station Captain; and
Melissa Lemen, Administrative Assistant. Absent: Patrick Kelly and Mordechai Kotler.

Election of Chair: A motion was made and seconded to nominate Ted Crawford as the
Chair of the Budget Committee for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. The motion passed

unanimously.

Budget Message & Budget Format Reviewed:

City Administrator Daykin noted that he provided Committee members with an additional
memorandum via email this afternoon to be added to their budget notebook materials. He
reviewed the budget message and discussed budget highlights. Marcus Harris inquired
about what the target amount is for the minimum general fund balance. C.A. Daykin
discussed that the biggest issue with the general fund is that the bulk of the tax revenue

does not come in on the new levy until November, though approximately $226,000 will be
needed at the start of the fiscal year to make it through to November.

FY 2020-21 Budget Review:

Governmental Funds: General Fund (pages 23-30)

C.A. Daykin reviewed the General Fund Summary information provided. He highlighted
that the City received funding this year and will receive additional funding next year from
the federal government grant funds for dealing with the COVID pandemic and the recovery
of the economy and the effects of dealing with the health crisis. C.A. Daykin explained that
an overview on how those funds can be utilized has been received though he is awaiting
more detailed guidance. He reviewed that approximately $667,400 is anticipated to be
provided in two installments - one in late spring/early summer 2021 and one in spring
2022. C.A. Daykin explained that the funds are reflected to come into the general fund
and then being dispersed out to three main funds: street CIP fund, water CIP fund and
sewer CIP fund. Discussion ensued.

C.A. Daykin explained that in the current budget year it was anticipated that police services
would receive a 3% COLA increase, though as it turned out the union did not receive this
and therefore the payment to them did not increase in the current fiscal year; it will next
year. C.A. Daykin explained that one change in the proposed budget is that the fees paid
for police services have been combined with the fees that are paid for emergency dispatch

1



services as one agreement; the City will no longer receive a kick back from the State of
Oregon for the 911 tax that they received which was derived from the City's jurisdiction.

C.A. Daykin noted that there was an anticipated decline from what was forecasted for the
transient room tax, though not nearly as bad as was predicted.

C.A. Daykin discussed that the City Council had a presentation from Waste Management
on April 20, 2021 regarding 2020 and a request to increase rates. He explained that City
Council did authorize some increase in the rates but also will be coming back to look at a
comparison to continue collection of the 3% (which is what the proposed budget is

forecasting with) versus increasing the franchise fee to 5%. C.A. Daykin discussed that
increasing the franchise fee to 5% would bring about an additional $10,000 annually.

David Russ inquired about whether the internal admin charges (table on page 29) are
done flat fee or whether the hours have been reanalyzed recently. C.A. Daykin discussed
that this is calculated in a simplistic manner which he described in detail. He explained

that though a more complex process could be utilized, the process used has been
accepted by the auditors. Russ suggested that perhaps doing an hours analysis for a 1-6
months may be helpful to ensuring this is breakdown is accurate. Brief discussion ensued.

C.A. Daykin explained that the City did see a downturn in fines and court fees because of
the travel restrictions beginning late last year and throughout the current year. He
explained that the police department itself had taken certain measures to reduce contacts
with drivers due to the concern of Coronavirus, though the activity levels are increasing.

C.A. Daykin highlighted that rental income is a newly categorized miscellaneous revenue,
which represents payments from Verizon to the City for a cell tower ground lease at the
rear of the fire station property. It was noted that once Verizon receives approval to move
forward with the project they will begin making payments.

Admin/Finance Department (pages 31-33)

C.A. Daykin highlighted that the salaries and personnel services of the proposed budget
are based on the assumption that the person who replaces his position will be coming in at
a similar salary and have full dependent status, which may or may not be accurate.

C.A. Daykin discussed the PERS side account (page 32, line 13) which was a one-time
payment to take advantage of a 25% match by the State. The funds deposited in the side
account are invested along with other PERS assets with the principal amount and earnings
amortized over a 20-year period to provide an offset to the City's contribution rates.

C.A. Daykin explained that "other professional services" (page 32, line 30) represents two
investigators who were used in the prior fiscal year and present fiscal year, though this
expense is not anticipated in the coming fiscal year. Related to that, he explained were a
substantial amount of legal fees that the City incurred. Russ inquired about whether any of
those fees are being covered by insurance which C.A. Daykin indicated were not.



C.A. Daykin discussed that "insurance" (page 32, line 44) represents liability and property
insurance, which is the share that is the general liability for the City. He explained that the
increase seen in the present budget was because the City had made a settlement for a tort
claim, and the City has a $10,000 deductible.

Harris inquired about the proposed budget for legal fees on line 27 and asked if this is an

averaged amount. C.A. Daykin explained that the proposed $32,900 is based on 22
meetings that the city attorney attends at $700 per meeting and the hourly rate of $350 x
50 hours for other work; whether this is adequate for all of the City legal expenses is
unknown for certain but should be assuming it will be a normal year.

C.A. Daykin discussed that until recently the City newsletter (page 33, line 65) was able to

be printed quarterly at very reasonable cost through Lazerquick in Newberg. He explained
that Lazerquick went out of business and upon checking with other local providers the cost
was found to be substantially higher (almost double) and the lead times were

unacceptable. C.A. Daykin discussed that a decision was then made to provide the
quarterly newsletter in electronic format via a link through the City website. Jeanne

Callahan asked whether it is known how many people are now accessing the online
version of the newsletter. C.A. Daykin discussed that this information is not known and that
there is not enough Staff to really promote social media type content; if perhaps there were
someone to volunteer and assist with that this would be helpful. Callahan voiced her
appreciation and enjoyment of the printed version of the newsletter though understood the
cost and timing constraints given the loss of Lazerquick. David Ford recalled previous
Council discussion regarding the desire to have the newsletter in printed form at least a
couple of times a year. He suggested that one alternative to sending out the full newsletter
may be to mail out a postcard a couple of times a year advertising that the newsletter is
available on the website; a postcard would not be as expensive as printing and mailing the
newsletter. Russ explained that Every Door Direct Mail (EDDM) through the USPS costs
$0.17/piece for delivery though does require special sizing; this may be a good option at a
reduced cost. Discussion ensued and C.A. Daykin offered that Staff would look into this
option and provide feedback to City Council at a future date.

Harris inquired about whether there are any areas in the proposed Admin/Finance Dept.
budget which would be a lower priority than other areas if any reductions were made in
these areas. C.A. Daykin discussed that many of these costs are related to maintaining
operations and some costs are estimated; there are really no "big ticket" items could make
a difference other than the proposed air conditioning unit at City Hall ($6,500).

Ford inquired about whether a COLA increase and merit increases have been built into the

proposed salaries and wages. C.A. Daykin explained that each year Staff evaluate for a
COLA increase based on the same methodology the City has used since 2008; the
increase is represented at 1 .45% in the proposed budget. He discussed that other
changes taking place relative to the salary schedule include the range increases for some

positions as established by policy adopted in 2019; this has been built into the proposed
budget. C.A. Daykin also explained that included in the proposed salaries/wages is the
potential step increase for an administrative employee who is not yet at the full step

3



allowance they are allowed; this person still has some growth potential for earning another
step increase based on an acceptable annual evaluation. It has noted that the other
employees have reached their full step potential. Callahan inquired about whether it is

known how those salary ranges compare to what might be going on with inflation or what
is anticipated for inflation, or how they might compare with other similar sized cities. C.A

Daykin discussed a comprehensive review of all positions was done back in November of
2018; at that time City Council adopted a new direction to move forward to make it more

equitable and competitive for the various positions. He suggested that this may be
something the City consider doing every 4-5 years. C.A. Daykin discussed that given that
Dundee is a small City, salaries are far less than cities of medium size and fall behind in a

competitive sense. He shared that many long-term employees enjoy working for the City
and the appreciate the work environment; it is also convenient for those who live in
Dundee as well. Ford pointed out that Dundee is not the only City facing budget issues; he
is aware of a few other cities who have frozen any COLA or step increases to deal with
budget shortfalls. C.A. Daykin noted that there will be no increase in the medical/dental
premiums next year, something he has not seen in his 40-year career.

Court (pages 34-35)

C.A. Daykin pointed out that the City has been paying the same rate for the municipal
court judge for close to 20 years as a contract with the City of Carlton; brief discussion
ensued.

Community Development (pages 36-38)

C.A. Daykin provided an overview of the information presented. He discussed the lengthy
process involved with the City of Newberg ultimately finding a permanent replacement for
the City Planner position; since the new planner has come on board there has been an
uptick in planning services seen due to the catch up required for projects not yet
completed. C.A. Daykin explained that also at the same time the City hired a separate
contract planner to make progress on a number of different tasks including a review of the
vacation rental regulation; the Planning Commission did finish this at their last meeting and
will be forwarding a recommendation to the City Council which will likely take place at the

second meeting in May.

Police (page 39)

C.A. Daykin reviewed that police services has been reduced to just one contract rather
than two separate contracts, which is reflected in the proposed budget. He explained that
the City is awaiting review and approval by the Newberg City Council before being able to
execute the agreement.

Fire Department (pages 40-43)

C.A. Daykin provided an overview of the history of the fire department personnel structure.
He discussed changes made this year including the addition of the Station Captain; Jeff
Myers is filling this position and was placed on the same range of the salary schedule as



the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, who also requires special certification and
manages a very expensive facility utilizing a lot of technical skills. C.A. discussed that the
City is going through negotiations right now with International Association of Fire Fighters

(IAFF) Local 1660 to establish the first collective bargaining agreement for the fire
department personnel. Though an agreement is being negotiated, it is premature to know
what impact that will have on the budget moving forward; at this time, the budget is based

on the historic salary schedule, including the range growth. C.A. Daykin reviewed that this
year there were a lot of fire conflagration wages, which are being fulfilled primarily by the
volunteers; whatever is expended is reimbursed by the State to cover that expense. C.A.
Daykin discussed Fire Administrative Services (line 39, page 42) and explained that during
the previous fiscal year the City had to hire an interim fire chief from McMinnville; that
carried over to the current fiscal year at which time the new interim fire chief (Brent
VanKeulen) was brought in to provide fire leadership administrative services. C.A. Daykin
explained that the $4,400 in the proposed budget represents a recently executed IGA with
McMinnville to provide fire marshal services as needed.

Brent VanKeulen, Interim Fire Chief, discussed trends seen nationally with regard to the
availability of volunteer fire firefighters; adding the paid staff Mon.-Fri. covers the City when
there aren't volunteers available. He discussed the transient nature of the part-time fire
fighter position. Chief VanKeulen discussed the onboarding costs associated with fire
fighters; it is expensive and staff turnover is costly. He reviewed that switching to the three

paid staff that are present now is meeting the demand during the day, though there are
some shoulder areas in the mornings and the evenings. Chief VanKeulen explained that
Captain Myers drafted a proposal to work 9 hours per day, which does cover the beginning
and the end of day when volunteers are available. He explained that when the volunteers
aren't in the City then the Department is reliant upon mutual aid response which is delayed
and unreliable because the partner agencies don't deploy and don't cover the community
based on needing to cover Dundee; they deploy and move resources around to cover their
service area. He explained that though they are always willing to help, there could be
extended response times. Chief VanKeulen discussed that the volunteers themselves are
signing up for shifts on the weekends and the evenings; they have a great response time
Mon.-Fri. at night. He explained that the data does show that response times are about 3-

4 min. slower than when there are people present at the station, but during the weekends
a lot of volunteers are at the station which provides a quicker response. Chief VanKeulen
discussed the importance of response times as they relate to calls. He also discussed the
value of having added additional paid staff prior to knowing there was a pandemic coming;
the fire department staff were on the front lines during the pandemic and were invaluable.

Chief VanKeulen discussed that a work group and outside consultants have been
evaluating the fire department over the past 6-7 months. He explained that the
recommendation that was recently approved by City Council was to hire a fire chief that

has operational capacity, and then to form a finance work group to provide
recommendations back to Council that would fund the fire department by adding three
additional paid staff and cover capital expenses for the next decade. Chief VanKeulen
discussed potential funding mechanisms briefly and long-term challenges the department

5



will face in the future. He also briefly reviewed a potential timeline over the next 3-4
months where the finance group would be discussing solutions and providing
recommendations for the Department moving forward. Russ inquired about whether there
will be additional expenses related to electronics in the next fiscal year. Captain Myers
discussed that the only electronic changeover this year will be their mobile gateway
(internet connectivity for the fire engines to run the onboard computing systems) for their

MDT's. He informed that their radio project is completely done; all radios are in service
currently. Discussion ensued.

C.A. Daykin reviewed the memo previously provided to the Committee. He identified and
highlighted the potential revenue options that the Committee may consider bolstering the
General Fund. He reviewed information pertaining to the opportunity to increase the
Waste Management franchise fee. C.A. Daykin discussed that if the PGE and NW Natural
franchise fee revenues were shifted from the Street CIP Fund to the General Fund until

such time a strategy is formed for long-term funding of the fire services, those funds could
later be reallocated back to Street. Discussion ensued and it was noted that increasing the
franchise fees would be directly reflected on the customer bill. C.A. Daykin discussed the
14% share of State liquor revenues in detail, as provided in his memo, and answered
Committee questions. Russ discussed that previous and present City Council have
expressed their priorities; having funding for parks has been really good for Dundee and
having funding to care for City streets has also been phenomenal. Russ also voiced
support of the projects which have been completed as a result of the matches the City has
been able to support from the franchise fees received. He voiced support of looking for
other solution options, if possible. C.A. Daykin discussed that another option could be
transferring money from the State Shared Revenues (if the Committee didn't want to

disband that fund) back to the General Fund for support general fund governmental
activities. Storr Nelson voiced support of keeping the State Shared Revenues fund as a
separate fund. He voiced support of the quality-of-life enhancements provided by this fund
in the City, especially during the difficult times. C. Weaver voiced support of Nelson's
comments. C. Adlong shared Nelson's opinion of retaining the funds in the State Shared
Revenue fund as well. C.A. Daykin reviewed the Public Safety Funding Work Group
information provided in his memo. He described the potential funding strategies listed in
detail. Russ discussed that he would recommend the merging of Dundee City Fire and
Dundee Rural Fire moving forward as a potential permanent situation. Discussion ensued
regarding this option and potential benefits of doing so prior to joining the fire district which
is potentially being created. Russ also discussed other factors which may lead to future

local development happening though it may take some time.

Street Fund (pages 44-48)

C.A. Daykin reviewed the Street Fund detail beginning on page 46. He highlighted "Other
Professional" on line 49 and explained that these funds were used not only to complete a
total evaluation of the entire street inventory, but also the City added a GIS mapping
module that the City Council was interested in for looking at streets. C.A. Daykin



discussed that this project is essentially complete; hopefully in the near future this
information can be shared with Council.

Crawford inquired about why Workers Comp (line 28) was so much less than expected this
fiscal year. C.A. Daykin explained that a move from CIS to SAIF was able to reduce these
costs significantly. He also noted that he was recently informed that CIS will be
discontinuing Workers Comp in the future and will be contracting with SAIF to provide

customer support to their cities moving to SAIF. Crawford expressed concern that the
proposed budget amount for Workers Comp seems a bit high. C.A. Daykin offered to
review the proposed budget amount to ensure that there is a logical reason for the noted

increase.

C.A. Daykin highlighted the most significant line item, #76 on page 47 for Street Surface
Maintenance & Repair. He pointed out that the biggest items in that line item are slurry
seals and crack sealing, which have increased since the City adopted the new street
maintenance program.

C.A. Daykin discussed that the Street Sweeping (line 75) budget increased dramatically.
He explained that one of the reasons for that is that the City had been using a very low -
cost contractor who was lacking in quality control and occasionally didn't complete the
work at all. C.A. Daykin discussed that the move to a more dependable reliable contractor
who provides excellent service for the City comes at a higher cost. Crawford inquired
about whether the new street sweeping service will clean in areas where there is no curb.
Chuck Simpson, Public Works Supervisor, explained that they will clean in uncurbed areas

upon request though there is an additional charge for that service. Simpson explained that
initially they had the new street sweeping company do a complete clean (base cleaning) of
Dundee to get an idea of how often this type of cleaning should be done. Crawford
inquired about whether there have been any comments/complaints about the slurry seal
work. Simpson noted that he is not aware of any complaints about the slurry seal work
other than the inconvenience of the roads being closed while the work is completed.
Nelson inquired about having the collector and arteriole streets striped to which Simpson
voiced support of. He discussed the complexity involved with getting the work scheduled.
Nelson voiced that Fulquartz and Parks Streets, as well as Fifth Street and Edwards
should all be considered for striping. Crawford suggested Ninth Street would also be a
good candidate, specifically the hiking areas, though C.A. Daykin pointed out this street
may also be a candidate for slurry seal this year (in which case the striping would need to
be done at a later date). Weaver discussed that in the Upland Drive & Dogwood Drive
area down to Viewmont there is a lot of crowding in the center of the street, especially on
the curve turning up Viewmont. C.A. Daykin discussed that back in 2017 when a complete
inventory review of Dundee streets the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) was 73; the most

recent inventory update showed Dundee to be at 80, a marked improvement. He
explained that the current financing plan at this point is to try to maintain that 80 level

system wide PCI.

Street CIP (pages 49-53)



C.A. Daykin reviewed the Street CIP Fund detail on page 52. He highlighted the Special
City Allotment (SCA) Grant and noted that though the program has continued for cities
under 5,000 in population, the application process has changed substantially to ensure
that funds are being distributed to all of the cities that need them through their competitive

process. Discussion ensued and C.A. Daykin discussed the SCA paving project involving
Myrtle Street, Thirteenth and various spot repairs throughout the city.

C.A. Daykin discussed the three outstanding loans in detail, as well as potential repayment
strategies.

Street Reserve Fund (page 54)

C.A. Daykin provided an overview on the history of the fund. He discussed in detail Staff

recommendations pertaining to completing some of these improvements this year, as
described on page 54.

Equipment Reserve Fund (page 57-59)

C.A. Daykin explained that there are a number of pieces of apparatus that the City is
looking at replacing. He noted that Fire Department Staff are doing some work to try to
find a water tender to replace. Crawford inquired about whether the Dundee Rural Fire
District (DRFD) working with the City to help pay for the water tender. Chief VanKeulen
explained that DRFD reserve all of their funds outside of there minimal cost to run their
Board in a Capital Reserve Fund; they don't have restrictions on where those funds are
spent. Chief VanKeulen explained that a proposal needs to be provided to them asking
what we need to purchase with the funds. C.A. Daykin discussed that Bert Hanifan has
been researching the potential purchase of a used water tender though the pricing and
lack of warranties associated with a used apparatus doesn't seem to make sense when

compared with purchasing new. Detailed discussion ensued with regard to a new water
tender which the Department is planning to purchase following authorization from City
Council. Russ inquired about whether financing or leasing would be an option for this
equipment and supported looking into this potential financing option to assist in retaining
funds in the City. Ford pointed out that interest rates are low right now; financing at a low
rate would be an advantage.

The Committee meeting was adjourned at 9:01 P.M.

r\ r .. . ^

G'J^o ^ C'XYA.-.-L.M^

Ted Crawford, Budget CohwiAtee Chair

s\ ^'.-X -A-<""'
..--'" ^

Rob Daykin, (Sity Administrator


